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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Titan Commodity Trading Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information ahd according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablehess of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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the

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Titan Commodity Trading Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)Rules,2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

a.

b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(ii)

the Note 25(a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 25(b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iiiy Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

e.

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Titan Commodity Trading Limited

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the respective software, except for the following instances mentioned below:

For data changes performed by users having privileged access (debug) in the accounting
software used to maintain general ledger.

At database level, the audit trail was enabled only from May 2023 in the accounting software
used to maintain general ledger.

Further , In the absence of Service Organizations Control (SOC 1) Type 2 report in relation to
controls related to accounting software used for. Revenue process, we are unable to comment on
whether the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled at the application and
database level and whether there were any instances of the audit traii feature being tampered
with.

Also, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled, we did not come across any instance of dudit
trail feature being tampered with.

C. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W4100022

T
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 222515
Date: 02 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24222515BKFIMG 1526

Page 4 of 10



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

@) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancy was
noticed on such verification.

(©) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@ The Company is a service company, primarily rendering broking services. Accordingly, it does
not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capita! limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from a bank on the basis of security of term deposits
placed with this bank, on which loan has been availed.

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it provided
guarantee or security. However, according to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of records of the Company, in respect of loans given by the
Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
have been complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(©

(d

(€)

®

() (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any
dues on account of Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise and Employee's State Insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(©

(xii)

(xili)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company. We have taken into
consideration the whistle blower complaints received under the vigil mechanism established
voluntarily by the Company during the year and shared with us while determining the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Titan Company Limited and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, though the
Company is not required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Act, the
Company does have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has more than one CIC
as part of the Group. The Group has seven CICs as part of the Group

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-1Q0022

o T Al
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 222515
Date: 02 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24222515BKFIMG1526
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Titan Commodity
Trading Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

in our opinion, the"Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities inctude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Titan Commodity Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:10{1248W/W3100022

<t

Rohit Alexander

Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 222515
Date: 02 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24222515BKFIMG1526
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Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024 Zin lakhs
Note As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
{1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,075 7437
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 3 57,943 42,804
() Other financial asseis 4 910 744
59,928 50,985
(2) Non-financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets{net) 9 231 142
{t) Deferred tax assets (net) 9 13 13
{c) Property, plant and equipment 5 0 0
{d) Other intangibie asscts [ 1 6
(¢} Other non-financial assets 7 2 39
247 200
Total Assets 60,175 51,185
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
{a) Trade payables
(T) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 8 (i) - -
(II) Total out?tmldmg dues of credxltm other 8. s7.831 49,174
than micro and small enterprises
(b) Other financial liabilities 8 (ii) 55 35
57,886 49,209
{2) Non-financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 10 36 77
(b} Other non-financial Liabilities I 114 165
150 242
EQUITY
() Bquity share capital 12 1,500 1,560
(b) Other equity 13 639 234
2,139 1,734
Total Liahilities and Equity 60,175 51,185
Material accounting policies 2

Zere ('0") represents amounts less than 1 lakh when rounded off
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Titan Commodity Trading Limited

CIN No- Us7190K A2020PLC137042 S
)

%L\w‘d W g

k Sonthalia Keerthivasan § Madhulika Jagannathan Rhonac K §

Director Munaging Director  Chigf Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership Number : 222515 DIN - 03259683 Membership No - A34050
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date : 2 May 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

Tin lakhs
Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations
() Fees and commission income 14 817 723
(b) Interest income 14 54 -
(1) Total revenue from operations 871 723
{2) Other income 15 40 2
(3) Total income (I +II) 911 725
Expenses
(i} Fees and commission expense 16 47 164
(ii) Employee benefits expense 17 191 155
(it} Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 5 5
{iv) Other expenses 18 124 125
(4) Total expenses 367 449
(5} Profit before tax (I - IV) 544 276
Tax expense:
(i) Current tax 9 136 86
(i) Deferred tax 1 ()]
(6) Total tax 137 79
(7) Profit for the year (V-VI) 407 197
{8) Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss
- Remeasurement of eruployee defined benefit plans (3) (15)
- Income-tax on (i) above 1 4
Total other comprehensive loss @ (§80]
(8) Total comprehensive income (VII+VIIT) 405 186
(MEarnings per equity share : 20
(Face value of Z 10 per share)
Basic 2.72 6.01
Diluted 272 6.01
Matetial accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Titan Commodity Trading Limited
CINN{; U6T190KA2020PLC137042 ws)
L - @ ¢ ‘
hﬂml_ia Keerthivasan S Madhuljka Jagannathan Rhonac K S
Director Managing Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership Number : 222515 DIN - 03259583 Membership No - A34050
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengalura Place: Bengalura Place: Bengaluru

Date : 2 May 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date ; 30 April 2024



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2624

Zin lakhs
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(a) Equity share capital
Opening balance 1,500 20}
Changes in equity share capital during the year - 1,300
Closing balance 1,500 1,500
{b) Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Other comprehensive
Particulars income Total equity
Retained earnings Remeasurement of
employee defined benefit
plans
Balance as at 1 April 2022 51 3 48
Profit for the year (net of taxes} 197 - 197
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - (11} (11}
Total comprehensive income for the year 249 15y 234
Payment of dividends - - -
Balance a5 at 31 March 2023 249 {15 234
Balance as at 1 April 2023 249 (15 234
Profit for the year (net of taxes) 407 - 407
Other comprehensive income for the year {net of taxes) - 2) 2)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 656 (17 639

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as folows:
a)Retained earnings

Retained eamings are the profit/loss that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholde:

b)Remeasurement of net defined benefit

Remeaswrement of net defined benefit liability/(asset} comprises actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets (excluding interest income).

Material accounting policies Note 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
C' riered Accodntants Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Registratioy No.: 101248W/W-100022 CIN No- U67190KA2020PLC137042
hit Alexanfler Sonth Keerthivasan 8
Dtrector Munaging Director
embership Number : 222515 DIN - 3259683
Place: Bengaluu Place: Bengaluru  Place: Bengaluru

Date : 2 May 2024 Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024

/

Madh Jagannathan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 30 April 2024

2

Rhonac K §

Company Secretary
Membership No - A34050

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 30 April 2024



Titan Commeadity Trading Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

T in lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particnlars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 344 276
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amorfisation 3 5
Provision no longer required written back (36) -
Interest income~-income tax refind )
Interest income 54 {2)
455 279
‘Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/decrease in other bank balances (15,139) (773)
(Increase)/decrease in, other assets (129) 27
Increasef(decrease) in trade payables 8,657 (818)
Increase/(decrense) in provisions (8) 47
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 20 3
Increase/(decrease) in other non financial liabilities {51y 152
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations (6,650} (1,364)
Income taxes paid (226) {199)
Net cask generated from operating activities A (6,421) (1,285)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and cquipment inclading intangibles 0 @
and capital work in progress
Interest received 59 2
Net cash nsed in investing activities B 59 ®
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares - 1,300
Net cash used in financing activities C - 1,360
Net increase/ (decrease) in eash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (6,362) 15
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 3 7,437 7,422
Add/ (Less): Unrealised exchange (gain)/ loss . -
Cash and cash eqaivalents at the end of the year (refer nete 3) 1,075 7,437
Material accounting policies 2z
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Ags per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Titan Commodity Trading Limited
CIN No- Us7190KA2020PLC137042 @
hok Sonthalia  Keerthivasan § Madh Jagannathan Rhonac K §
Dikector Muanaging Director Chigf Financiual Gfficer Company Secretary
Membership Number : 222515 DIN - 03259683 Membership No - A34050
Place: Bengahuru Place: Bengaluru ~ Place: Bengahira Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date : 2 May 2024 Date : 30 Aprit 2024 Date : 30 April 2024  Date : 30 April 2024 Date : 30 April 2024



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
1. Corporate Information

Titan Commodity and Trading Limited (“the Company”) with registered office at Integrity No.193,
Veerasandra, Electronics City P.O, Off Hosur main road, Bengaluru - 560100 India was incorporated on
10 August 2020 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Titan
Company Limited (“TCL” or “Holding company™). The Company is engaged in the business of trading in
various commodities and products by acquiring or registering as a member of direct commodities or
commodity futures (primarily Gold). Accordingly, the Company has registered with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and obtained certificate of registration on 4 December 2020. The
Company is also a member of Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd (“MCX”) with effect from 26
November 2020 and MCX have activated for enabling the Company for trading on 4 February 2021.

2A. Basis of preparation
A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended, read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions
of the Act.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 30 April 2024,
B. Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention
except for fair value through other comprehensive (FVTOCI) instruments, derivative financial
instruments and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
all which have been measured at fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

C. Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Such cstimates and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may diverge from these
estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
(vrecognized in the period in which the estimates arc revised and in any future periods affected.



Titan Commedity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

2.Basis of preparation (continued)

D. Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

E. Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values and
the valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into a different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

2B, Material Accounting Policies

A. Revenue recognition

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price
(net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation.

Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a single comprehensive model of
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. The Company is engaged in the business
of providing brokerage services.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out
in Ind AS 115;

Step 1. Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

>
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Titan Commedity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

A. Revenue recognition{continued)

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satistying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

a) Brokerage fee income
Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services on trade
date basis upon confirmation by the stock exchange, in accordance with the terms of contract.

b) Imcome from bank guarantee commission
Income from bank guarantee commission is recognized at an agreed rate based on the bank
guarantee value provided to the customer.

¢) Other Income
In calculating the interest income the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the assets (when the asset is not credit impaired).

B. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease i.¢., if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange of consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except for short-term
leases. The Company does not have lease which qualify to be recognized under Ind AS 116 accounting,

C. Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

All short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, special awards and medical benefits which
fall within 12 months of the period in which the employee renders related services which entitles them to
avail such benefits and non-accumulating compensated absences are recognised on an undiscounted basis
and charged to the statement of profit and loss.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
/'service provided by the employee and the obligation can be cstimated reliably.

b
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Titan Commedity Frading Limited
Notes to financial statements {(continued)
C. Employee benefits(continned)
Defined contribution plan

The Company's contributions to the Superannuation Fund which is managed by a Trust and Pension Fund
administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and Company's contribution to National pension
Scheme are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when
services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plan

The contribution to the Titan Industries Gratuity Fund is provided using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected in retained earnings and is not reclassified to the statement of profit and
loss.

The contribution to the Titan Watches Provident Fund Trust is made at predetermined rates and is charged
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by
the employees.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Employee Stock option plan

Equity settled share based payments of parent company are made to the eligible employees and
Company does not have any contractual obligation (legal or constructive) to provide equity
instruments of parent company. Accordingly, Company has measured the services received from
its employees in accordance with the requirements applicable to equity-settled share-based
payment transactions and recognize a corresponding increase in inter-company payable. The
Company measures compensation cost relating to employee stock options using the intrinsic value
method. Compensation expense is amortized in a systematic manner over the graded vesting
period.

D. Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and

any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax

reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or recoverable from tax authorities after

considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws)
/, enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

)
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Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

D. Income tax{continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is aiso recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong cvidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each repotrting date
and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

E. Impairment

Impairment of financial aggets:

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime
ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suifered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determing
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
/)’ndiVidMl asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the

D
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Titan Commedity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements {(continued)

E. Impairment(continued)

assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market asscssments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

F. Provisions and contingencics

Provisions: A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of time value of money is
material).

Contingent liabilities: A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or
a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a
present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made in the financial statements.

Provision for onerous coniracts. i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised
when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a
present obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

G. Financial instruments

Recognition of financial assets:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party io the
coniractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial asscts and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other than financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or

9
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Titan Commeodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
G. Financial instruments(continued)

liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition of
financial assets or liabilities measured at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and
logs,

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in market place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of financial assets.

A) Financial Assets

Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at

(i) Amortised cost
(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
(iii)y  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

i) Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amorfised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash (lows and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc sol¢ly
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Effective interest method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income™ line item.

ii} Investments in equity instruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value either in the statement of profit and loss or in other
comprehensive income pertaining to equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
frecogised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the Reserve for equity instruments through

- F



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
G. Financial instruments(continued)

other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to the statement of profit and
loss on disposal of the investment.

A financial asset is held for trading if;
- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Currently, the Company has not elected to present subsequent changes in investments in equity instruments
in OCIL. Accordingly, the same are considered as investments measured at FVTPL.

iif) Invesiments in equity instruments at FVTPL

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measurcd at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the ‘Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised
when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.

Whether the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control
of the financial asset. When the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

The Company has applied derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the transition date of Ind AS.

.



Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
G.Financial Instruments (confinued)

B. Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any coniract that e¢vidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Other Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition
ot when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company,
and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such in initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in statement of
profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other
income/Other expenses’ line item.

The Company has designated amount payable for gold taken on loan from banks on initial recognition as
fair value through profit and loss,

Financial liabilitics subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-irading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign exchanpe gains and losses:

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measurcd at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
tfrcurrency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are
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Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
G.Financial Instruments (continued)

measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilitics when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability.

The Company has applied derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the transition date of Ind AS.

H.Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments
and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
regular revenue generating (operating activities), investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

L.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

J. Earnings per share

Basic Eamings Per Share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. In computing diluted earnings
per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces earnings per share or increases
loss per share are included.

K. Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement:

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold
land is not depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any
trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable
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Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

K. Property, plant and equipment(continued)

from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended
use, other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property,
plant and equipment up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on
property, plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalised only if such expenditure results
in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

The estimated useful life of the tangible assets and the useful life are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and the depreciation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value. Depreciation is calculated on the basis of the estimated useful lives using the straight line method
and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Depreciation for assets purchased/ sold
during the year is proportionately charged from/upto the date of disposal. Free hold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

Asset category Useful lives

Computers 3 years

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Repairs and maintenance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation
are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date is disclosed as
capital advances under noncurrent assets.

Intangibles

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Intangible asscts are
amortised over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from the date that they are
available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible assets is based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the
stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures
{/required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

K. Property, plant and equipment(continued)

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:
Software - License period or 5 years, whichever is lower.

The estimated useful life of the tangible assets and the useful life are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and the depreciation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

L. Recent pronouncements

As on date of release of these financial statements, MCA has not issued any standards/amendments to
(,accounting standards which are effective from 1 April 2024.
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Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Notes to the financial statements
3 Cash and bank balances
Particuiars
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with banks {of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
In current account with banks {refer nots (a) below}
-In India with scheduled banks {refer note (a) below}
~Outside India

Total cash and cash eguivalents

Other bank balances

Fixed deposits with banks {refer note (&) below}
-In India
-Outside India

Total other bank balavces

Note -

Tin lakks
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,075 7,437
1,075 7,437
57,943 42,804
57,943 42,804
59,018 50,241

8} The balance in current accounts includes the positive balance in the overdraft account amounting to Rs, Nil (Previous year: Rs. 6,911 lakhs). The overdraft account has been
opened to facilitate transactions with MCX such as Mark to Market gain/ {loss) oo Gaily basis. The cverdraft account has been taken by placing Fixed Deposits on lien as securities,

There was no requireent for quarterly staterents to be filed with bank.

b) Fixed deposit under lien with MCX (Exchange) amounted to Rs. 53,844 lakhs ( Previous year: Rs, 32,750 lakhs) placed for the purpose of commencement of trading with

Exchange.

Other financial assets
Particulars

Unsecured, considered good
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Security depesits

Other financial assets

Other non-financial assets

Property, plant and cquipment
Particulars

Gross block

As at 1 April 2022
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 2023

As at [ April 2023
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 Mar 2024
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2022
Additions™

Disposals

As at 31 Mar 2023

As at 1 April 2023

Depreciation expense for the year *#
Disposals

As at 31 March 2024

Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2023*

As at 31 March 2024*

# Refer note 30
*Zero () represents amounts less than 1 fakh when rounded off

Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

B6R 701

35 35

7 7

910 744
Camputers Total

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

Q o

0 0

1 1

1 1

0 0

1 1

0 0

0 0




Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Nates fo the financial statements
Tin lakhs
& Intangible assets

Particulars Computer softwares Tatal
Gross black
As at | April 2022 12 12
Additions 2 2
Disposals N =
As at 31 March 2023 14 14
As at 1 April 2023 14 14
Additions - -
Disposals B =
As at 31 Mar 2024 14 14
Accumulated amartisation
Asgat 1 April 2022 4 4
Amortisation expense for the year 4 4
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2023 8 8
As at 1 April 2023 8 8
Amortisation expense for the year 5 5
Digposals 5 5
As at 31 Mar 2024 13 13
Net carrying valug
As at 31 March 2023 [ 3
As at 31 March 2024 1 1

* The Company does not have any capital work in progress/ intangibles under development as at 31 March 2624 and 31 March 2023, hence capital work in progress/ intangibles
urtdex development schedule is not applicable.

7 Other non financial assets

Particuiars Asat Agat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Unsecured and considered good
Prepaid expenses 2 18
Balance with government authorities {refer note (a) below} - 21
2 3

a) Balances with government anthorities are GST input credits.

% Financial Liabilities
i) Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dnes of micro and smail enterprises* - -
Total outstanding dues of other than micro and small enterprises 57,831 49,174
57,831 49!174
*Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:
Asgat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of the year:
- Principal 3 =
- Interest = =
The amount of interest paid by the buyet in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Smatl and Medinum - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year - =
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in mzking payment (which have - =
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest

The amount of intetest acerued and remaining ungpaid at the end of each accounting year. - =
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding yeass, until - =
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purposes

of disallowance of a deductible expendifure under Section 23 of MSMED Act, 2606.



Titan Commudity Trading Limited
Nates to the financial statements

Tin lakhs
8§ Fi ial Liabilities (continued)
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment
PR Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years ol
i) MSME S : E -
(ii) Others 57,802 29 - 57,831
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - N
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - -
Tatal 57,802 29 - 57,831
As at 31 March 2023
" ‘Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Earllzulsrs Less than I year 1-3 years More than 3 yeara jtotal
(i) MSME - - - -
(if) Others 49,174 B - 49,174
(iii) Disputed dues — MEME - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - -
Total 49,174 - - 49,174
ii)  Other Financial Lisbilittes
q Asat Asat
Particulara 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Acerued salaries and benefits 31 35
Payable to Parent 24 -
55 35
9 Income tax
a) A T ised in stal it of profit and loss
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income tax expenses
Current tax 136 86
Deferred tax 1 7
137 il
b)  The reconciliation between the provision of income tax and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory income tax tate to profit before taxes:
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2623
Profit before tax 544 276
Enacted income tax rzte in India* 25, 168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expense 137 69
Effect of:
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit - 17
Expensc allowed under [T Act for current year (Preliminary Exp) [{}] n
Effect of Previous year losses - -
Expenses atlowed under IT Aot for current year {Leave Encashment) N =
Otiers (Depreciation) - .
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and fess 136 86
©)  The foltowing table provides the details of income tax nssets and income tax liabilities as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income tax assets 231 142
Current ingome tax lability - B
Net Ineome Tax Assets at the end of the year 231 142
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net current income tax assets at the beginning of the year 142 28
Tncome tax paid 226 199
Current income tax expense {136} {86)
Net current income tax Assets at the end of the year P31 142
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Tncome tax (continued)
Movement of deferred tax

Income taxes

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(lisbilities):

Particulars

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax linbilities*

Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities
TProperty, plant and equipment
Employes benefits

Intangible assat

Deferrved tax assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset

Employee benefits
Preliminary expense / 350

Net deferred tax apset /(liability)

Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits

Intangible asset

Deferred tax assefs
Employec benefits
Preliminary ¢xpensef 351>

Net deferred tax agset /(lahility)
Provisions

Particulars

Provision for gratuity {refer note 22)
Provision for leave salaries (refer noie 22)
Other Provisions*

Total

Fin lakhs
Asat Asat
3% March 2024 31 March 2023

13 13

- [

13 13
Agat Recognised in - S As at
1 April 2023 of profit and loss = IOCT 31 March 2024
= 1] - [+
{0 1 - 1

6 1 - 7

7 (2) - 5

13 1] - 13
13 0 - 13
Asat R ised in stat it — — Ag at
1 April 2022 of profit and loss = in OCT 31 March 2023

© - - -
(0] 9 = ()]
© 0 - 0}

5 1 - 6

2 L] - 7

7 7 - 13

& 7 - 13
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

8 16

28 25

- 36

36 17

*The Company was in receipt of an emazil communication from MCX on 09 April 2022 demanding penalty of Rs. 36,13,605 for non-submission of segregation of clietf collaterals
of 16 February 2022 a5 per Exchange Compliance reguirements. The Cotnpany had submitted responses to the penalty and requested for a waiver of the said penalty.
In April 2023, the Company received a final demand from MCX confirming the levy of the ahove penalfy and a provision as at 31 March 2023 for the entire penalty amount was

created.

However, the relevant authority considered the Company's request and waived the entire anount of penaliy in March 2024.The provision has accordingly been reversed and

recognised as miscellanecus income

Provision for Litigations

Balance as on | April 2022

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used/reversed during the year
Balance as on 31 March 2023

Current
Nen Current

Provision for Litigations

Balance as on 1 Apeil 2023

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used/reversed during the year
Balance as on 31 March 2024

Current
‘Non Current

Litigations

36

36

36

Litigations
36

36
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Tin lakhs
11 Other non-fisancial Habilities
N Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 1 March 2023
Statwtory dues 114 107
Other Liabilities - 5%
114 165
12 Share capital
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
(in lakhs) (im lakhs)
a) Authorised
Equity share of ¥ 10 each with voting rights 350 3,500 350 3,500
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity share of 10 sach with voting rights 150 1,500 150 1,560
c) Reconciliation of the shares ding at the and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
No. lakhs T lakhs No. lakhs ¥ lakhs
Equily shares with voting rights
At the bepinning of the period 150 1,500 20 200
Issued and subseribed during the pesiod - - 130 1,300
At the end of the year 150 1,560 150 1,500
d) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company and details of Shareholding of Prometers
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
No, of shares held of total No. of shares hetd % of total
{in inkhs) holding (in lakhs) holding
Titan Company Limited (Promoter) 150 109 150 100

&) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Clompany has only one class of eguity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 40 ong vote per share. The company has not declare any dividend All equity shares rank

pari passu with regard to dividends and residuat assets of the Company.

In the event of liquidation, the shareholders are eligible o receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in propottion of their

shareholdings.

f) Capital management

The Company's objective for capital management is to maximise share holding value, safepuard busincss continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company
determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans, longterm and other steategic investment plans. During the previous year, as requited by the MCX under the
totification released on 24 Feb 2023, the company was required to maintain a ménimum networth of 10% of the average daily cash balance of clients retained with the member

ACCTDSS in the p 6 months. Hence, additional share capital was raised under rights issne

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and matket confidence and to sustain future d

Jopment of the bust iy w

capital on the basis of return on capitat employed. For the putpose of debt to total equity ratio, the Company does not have any debt and hence not disclosed debt-equity ratio.

g) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment,

13 Other equity
Particulars

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Profit for the year {net of taxes)

Other comprehensive income for the year (nst of tazes)
Clvsing balance

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
234 48

407 197

@) an

39 234
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15

16

17

18

19

20

Revenue from operations
Particalars
Fees and Commission Income

- Income from broking services
« Income from bank guarantee commission

Interest Income

- Interest income on deposits with MCX and other interests

Other income
Particulars

Interest income on income tax refund
Miscelleneous [ncome

Fees and commission expense
Particulars

Bank guarantee commission
Ci commissi

Emnployee benefits expenses
Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

- Provident and other funds {refer note 22(b))

- Gratity (refer note 22(b))

Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 23)
Staff welfare expenses

Other expenses
Particulars

Professional charges
Anditors' remuneration
Rent

Membership fees
Rates and taxes

Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 19)

Software expenses
Misceilaneous Expenses

Statement of Corporate Social Responsibility cxpenditure

Tin lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2024 31 March 2023
758 561
5% 162
817 723
54 -
54 =
For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
4 1
36 1
40 2
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
16 45
31 119
47 164
For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
149 141
11 g
4 2
24 -
3 4
191 155
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
98 37
11 51
3 3
1 1
1 66
5 5
5 2
124 125

The Company is not required to spend for Corporate Social Responsibility for current year as stated in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Earnings per share
A. Basic earnings per ghare

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding

during the year {including equity sheres that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandaiorily convertible instruments).

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year plus the weighted average number of equity sharcs that would be issuzed on conversion of all the dilutive potenéial equity shares into equity shares,

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earninps pet share:

Particutars

Profit for the year (¥ lakhs)

‘Weighted average number of equity shares
Nominal value of shares (T}

Profit per share - Basic

Profit per share - Diluted

i) Net profit atiributable to Equity shareholders

For the year ended
31 March 2024

407
1,50,00,000
10

2.72

272

For the year ended
31 March 2023
197

32,82,192

0

6.01

60
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Tin lakhs
20 Earnings per share (continued)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 32 March 2023
Net profit for the yeat, atiributable to Equity sharcholders 407 197

Weighted average pumber of equity shares
For the year ended Far the year ended

EdriFis 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of equity shares at the begining of the year 1,50,00,0060 20.,00,080
Weighted average shares issued during the year (rights issne) - 12,82,192
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 1,50,00,000 32,582,192
Earnings per share 272 6.01
i, Profit attributable o equity shareholders (basic)
Particulsrs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net profit for the year, attrbutable to the owners of the Company (A) 407 197
fi) Basle earnings per sharo
iParticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Nemoher of equity shargs at the beginning of the year 1,50,60,000 20,060,000
‘Weighted average number of shares issued during the year (right issue) - 12,82,192
‘Weighted average number of equity shares issued outstanding daring the year end (B} 1,50,00,000 32,82,192
Barnings per share, basic (A) / (B) 2.72 &.01
idly Dilmted earninps per share
Particelars For the year ended For the year ended|
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
fNusmber of equity shares et the beginning of the year 1,50,00,000 20,00,000
Weighted average number of shares issued during the year (right iseue) - 12,382,192
‘Welghted average number of equity shares issned ontstanding during the year end (B) 1,50,00,000 32,382,192
Eamings per share, dilufed {A) / (B) 272 501

21 Contingent lfabilities and commitments
a) There are ne claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2073,
b} There are o outstending litigations involving the Company as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
c) Thers are no long-tettn coniracts including derivative contracts for which there were afy material foresesable losses as on 32 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Capital commitments
Theze are ne estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

22  Employee benefits
2) Defined Contsibution Plans
1) The contributions recognized in the statement of profit and Joss during the year are as under:

Particuiars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Superabsuation fund 3 3
Employee pension fund 1 1
4 4

Note: The above expense are disclosed under Contribution to provident and other funds - Employee benefits expense (refer note 17),

M2
b
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Tint lakhs

Employee benefits (continued)

t

Dedined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to such benefits.
The C; v provides sup ion benefits to its employees which ate treated as defined contribution plans.

a) Superannuation fund
All eligible employees on Indian payroll are entifled to benefits under Superannuation, 2 defined contribution plan. The Company recognises such contributions as an expense when
incurred.

The Company sxpensed 3 lakbs and 3 lakhs for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, respectively, towards Titan Watches Superannuation Furd.

b) Defined Benefit Plans
The expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year are as under;
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provident fund* 5 4
Long Service Award 0 1
5 5

* Contributions are made 1o the Titan Watches Provident Fund Trust at predetermined rates in accordance with the Fund rules. The interest rate payable by the Trust to the
‘beneficiaries is as notified by the Government. The Company has an obligation fo make good the shortfall, if any, between the retun from the investments of the Trust and the
notified interest rate and recognizes such shortfafl as an expense.

i) Gratuity (Funded)
The Company makes annua) contributions to The Titan Indusiries Gratuity Fund. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested empioyees at retirement, death while in
employment, or on tertaination of ¢wploytoent as pet the Company's Gratnity Scheme. Vesting ocours upon completion of five years of servies.

The plan is 2 defined henefit plan which is sponsored by the Group and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the Company that an
adverse salary growth or inadequate returns on underdying plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future, Since the benefits are lump
sum in natare the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

There were no employees during previous year, hence the discount rate and salary escalation rate ate considered as NIL.

The principal assumptions uscd for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particolars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount mie {p.2.} 7.20% 745%
Salary escelation rate (p.a.) 8.00% 8.00%

- The retirement age of employees of the Company varies from 58 to 60 years,
- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Tndian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.
- Rates of leaving service (leaving service due to disability included) at specimen ages are as shown below:

Rates {(p.a.}
Age (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
21-44 6.00% 6.00%
45 and zbove 2.00% 2.00%

Ceomponents of defined benefit costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss are as follows:
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Employee benefits (continued)

Reconciliation of the projected defined benefit abligation
Particulars

Defined benefit lisbility
Plan asget
Net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Particulars

Current service cost
Interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset)
‘Total component of defined benefit costs charged to the statement of profit and loss

Components of defined benefit costs
Particulars

Opening ameunt recognised in other comprehensive income outside the statement of profit and
Remeasurements doring the year due to:

- Changes i financial assumptions

~ Changes in demographic assumptions

- Experience adjustments

- Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan sssets

- Adjustnsgnt to recognise the effect of asset ceiling

Closing recognised in other prehensive income

* Other coraprehensive income disclosed above is gross of tax,

d in other comprehensive income are as follows:

Ein lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
112 92
104 76
8 16
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2624 31 March 2023
3 2
1 ()]
4 2
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
9 4
1 3
8 9
(6) 3
22 i9

The current service cost, past service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense’ line ftem in the statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars

Opening net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Expense charged to the statement of profit and loss
Amount recognised outside the statement of profit and Toss
Employer contributiong

Impact of liability assumed or (settled)

Clesing net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Movernents in the present value of the defined benefit obligation arc as follows:

Particulars

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Past service cost

Ingerest on defined benefit obligation

Remeasurement due to

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from ¢hanges in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Tmpact of liability scttled®

Clesing defined benefit obligation

*On account of transfer from Titan Cormpany Limited to Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Movements in the faiy value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars

Opening fair value of plan assets

Employer contributions

Interest on plan assets

Remeasurements due o actuarial return on plan assets less interest on plan assets

Benefits paid*

Closing fair vadue of plan assets

*On account of transfer from Titan Company Limited to Titan Commodity Trading Limited

|

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
16 n
4 2
3 15
(1) :
8 16
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
92 72
4 2
7 5
1 4
8 9
112
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7€ 4
16 -
[ 5
6 3)
104 76
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Employee benefits (continned)

Sensitivity analysis

&in lakhs

The key actuariz] assumptions to which the defined benefit plans are particularly sensitive to ate discount rate, fill salary escalation rate and atirition rate. The following table
summarises the impact on the reported defined benedit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the assumption by 50 basis

As at 31 March 2024

Discount rate Salary escalation rate Attrition rate
Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 basis points 109 114 109
Defined benefit obligation on minus 50 basis points 114 109 112
As at 31 March 2023
Discount rate Salary escalation rate Attrition rate
Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 basis poinés 90 93 92
Defined benefit obligation on minus 50 basis points 95 90 23
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particoiars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
With jn year 1 2 2
1 year to 2 years 3 2
2 years to 3 years 3 2
3 years to 4 years 70 3
4 years to 5 years 3z 60
Over 5 years 50 T2
The Company is expecied to contribude ¥ 7 lakh to the gratuity fund next year.
A split of plan asset between various asset classes is as below:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Quoted Unguoted Quoted Unqguofed
Government dsbt instruments 59 - a3 -
Other debt instruments 25 - 23 -
fintity's own equity instruments 11 - 7 -
Others - 9 = 3
95 9 73 3
¢) Unfunded
The defined benefit obligation pertaining which are provided for but not funded are as under:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Compensated absences
Non-current 24 22
Cusrent 4 3
28 25

Employee stock option plan (ESOP)

During the year, the Company's eligible employees were granted employee stock options by its holding company - "Titan Company Limited".

As per the plan, the vesting pericd of the option is one to four years from the date of grant. Options granted under the Scheme can be exercised within a period of six years from the

date of vesting. For employess leaving the organization, an option ¢an be exercised within 3 months from the daic of resignation.

The Company recognizes compensation expenses relating to these share-based payments using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment. These Employee
Stock Options granted are measured by reference to the fair value of the instrament at the date of grant. The holding company recharges the ESOP expenses relating to the
Company's employess. These expense are recognised int the statement of profit and loss under employee stock option expense with a corresponding credit in other nen-current

liability. The detail below capiures the information of the entire plan of the Holding Company.

Fair Value Measurement

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and

expected price volatility of the nnderlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

*The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding as of March 31, 2024 was 2.09 years.
The fair value of the options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Model with the following assumptions:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No of options granted 3,000 -
Risk free interest rate 6.80 -
Expeoted life of options granted 3.0 -
Expected volatility (weighted average) 28.50 -
Dividend Yield (%4) 0.32 -
Fair value of options per share () 2,628 -
Exercise price (in¥) 1 =
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24 Related parties
i) Relationships
a) Promoter and holding company

b) Key management personnel

c} Fellow subsidiaries

d) Othet related parties

¢} Promoter of holding company

1} Group entities
{Wherever there are transactions)

£) Post employee benefit plan entities

il) Related party transactions during the year :
Particalars

Key gerial p s jon
Salaries, wages and bonus

Gratuity and compensated absences
Employee Stock Option

Loan to Director

Titan Company Limited
issue of equity share capital

Revenue from operations
Bank guarantes commission
Income from Broking services

Expenses

Remtal expense

Corporate patantee commisson
Shared services

Other expenses

Guarantees active at the end this financial year
Corporate guaranice

Titan Company Limited

Keerthivasan 8, Managing Director
Madbulika Jagannathan, Chief Financial Officer
Rhenac K S, Company Secretary

Directors

Krishnan Venkateshwaran
Subramaniam Somasundaram
Ashck Sonthalia

Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Caratlate Trading Private Limited

Titan Watch Compeny Hongkong Limited (100% subsidiary of Titan Holdings International FZCO)

Titan Holdings International FZC0O
Titan Global Redail LL.C
Titan International QZ LLC

Green Infra Windpower Theni Limited

Tala Sons Private Limited
Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation Limited

Tata Communications Limited
Titan Watches Provident Fund

Titan Watches Super Annuation Fund
Titan Industries Gratuity Fund

For the year ended
31 March 2024

e &

59
750

10,000

Zin lakhs

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1,300

162
359

15,000
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24 Related parties(continued)

Caraflane Trading Private Limited
Revenue from operations
Income fiem Broking services 3 2

Tata Communications Limited

Expenses
Bandwidth/ networkings charges 1 1

i) Related party closing balances as on balance sheet date:

25
251

25.2

253

Partical For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade Payahles
Titen Company Limited* 50,062 47,759
Caratlane Trading Private Limited* 1,387 1,385
Tata Communications Limited 1 ]
Loan to Director 2 -

*Matk 10 market settlement and margin money placedfrefimded during the year in the MCX by fhe company have not been disclosed as these are laced with MCX on bebalf of the
related parties.

Financlal instruments
Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets

For the year ended Far the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Measured at fair valuc through OCT (a) - -

Measured at fair vatue through P&L (b) - -
Measured at amortised cos¢

- Cash and cash equivalenis 1,075 7,437
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 57,943 42,804
- Other Financial Assets - Current 868 701
- Security deposits with stock exchanges 35 35
- Other Assets 7 1
Total fingncial assets measured at amortised cost {¢) 54,928 50,985
Total financial assets (a + b +¢) 59,928 50,985
Financial liahilities - -

Measured at fair value through OCI (a) E -
Measured at fair value through P&L (b) = =

Measured at amortised cost B s

- Trade payables 57,831 49,174
- Other financial liabilities 53 33
Total financial liabilities measnred at amortised cost () 57,886 49,209
Total financial liabilities (a + b + ¢) 47,886 49,209

Note: Thete are no derivative instruments as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Fair valug hierarchy
Fair value iy the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of wheiher that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation techniqus.

The fair vakues for assets and liabilities which are meesured at amortised cost as a¢ 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are same as disclosed in note 25.1 above.

Financial risk management

The Company ¢valuate business risks and challenges. These risks include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

B Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company, Credit risk is managed by the Company
through approved credit norms, establishing credit limits, obtaining advances from customers and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company
grants ¢redit terms in the normal course of business, As of 31 March 2024 Company was not exposed to credit risk as there were no trade receivables at the vear end.

ii) Liquidity risk

The Cotapany manages liquidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilitics, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and by hing the maturity profiles of fi ial assets and liabilities. The company expects to meet its other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing
financial assets.

Contractual matnrities of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 Less than 3 months More than 3 months Total

Trade payables 57,831 - 57,831

37,831 - 57,831

=
. _
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25 Financial instruments(continned)
Maturity analysis
The table below shows an analysis of financial assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or seitled.
As af 31 March 2024
Particolars Less than 6 months §-12 months 1-5 years More than 5 years Tofal
Financial Assets
{#) Cnsh and cash equivalents 1,075 - - - 1,075
(b) Bank balances other than (z} above 57,683 259 5 - 57,943
(<) Other financial assets 210 - - 910
59,668 259 - - 59,928
Nop-finaneial Assefs
(a) Other non-financial assets 2 - - - 2
2 - - - 2
Total Assets 59,670 259 - - 59,929
Finnncial Liabilitles
{i} Trade Payables 57,831 A - . 57,831
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities-Employee 31 - - 3
related °
57,862 A - - 57,862
Non-financial Lisbillties
{a) Provisions 36 - - - 36
{b} Othsr Non-financial liabilities 1t4 - - - 114
150 - - - 150
Total lizhilities 55,012 - - - 58,012
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Less than 6 months £-12 months 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Financial Assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 7,437 - - - 7437
{b) Bank balances other than (a) above 42,543 259 - - 42 804
{c) Other financial assets 744 - - 744
50,726 259 - - 50,985
Non-financial Assets
(a} Other non-financial assats 39 - - - 39
39 - - - 39
Total Assets 50,765 259 - - 51,024
Financizl Liabilities
{) Trade Payables 49,174 = - - 49,174
(ii} Other Financial Liabilities-Emsloyee relatec 35 35
49,208 - - - 49,208
Nog-financial Liabhilities
(a) Provisions 77 - . B P
(b) Other Nen-financial liabilities 165 - & - 165
242 - - - 242
Total Habilities 49,451 - - - 49,451
ifi) Market risk

Market risk asfses when movemens in tarket factors (foreign exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads and equity prices) impact the Company income or market value of its
portfolio. The Company in its course of business, is exposed to change in equity prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The objective of market risk management is to
maintain an acceptable level of matket risk exposure while aiming to maximize return. Further, the Company is holding fixed deposits, which is provided by clients to maintain
mergin in MCX, and any interest eamned i passed through (o the clients, Therefore the Company was not exposed to market risk, with respect to interest rates for the fixed deposit

batances cutstanding as at the reporting date.

iv) Maturity analysis

The teble below shows an arabysis of assets and labilities analysed aceording to when they ase expected to be recovered or settled.
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25 Fi ial instr inued)
As at 31 March 2024 ‘Within 12 months After 12 months Total
Financial Assets
() Cash and cash equivalents 1,075 - 1,075
{b) Bank halances other than {a) above 57,943 - 57,943
{c) Other financial assets 910 - 910
59,928 - 59928
Non-financial Assets
(a} Cument tax asseis(net} - 231 231
(b) Deferred Tax Assets {nef) - 13 13
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment - 0 @
(d) Other Intangible assets - 1 1
{e) Other non-financial asseis 2 - 2
2 245 246
TFotal Assets 59930 245 60,174
Financiat Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 57,831 - 57,831
{b) Other Financial Liabilities 31 - 31
57,862 - 57,862
Non-financial Liabilities
(2) Provisions 39 30 69
{b) Other Non-financial liabilities 114 - i14
153 34 183
Total liabilities 58,015 30 58,045
As af 31 March 2023 ‘Within 12 months After 12 months Total
Financial Assets
() Cash and cash equivalents 7,437 . 7437
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 42,804 « 42,804
(¢) Derivative Financial Instraments - - -
(d) Receivables &
{D) Trade Receivables - - -
{ID) Other Receivables - - -
{¢) Loans - N -
(f) Investments - N 5
{c) Other financial assets 744 - 744
50,985 - 50,985
Non-financial Assets
(2}  Current tax assets(bet) = 142 142
(b) Defesred Tax Assets (net) S 13 13
(c)  Property, Plant and Equipment - 0 Y]
(d)  Other Intangible assets - 6 ]
(¢)  Other non-financial assets 39 - 39
39 161 200
Total Assets 51,024 161 51,185
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25 Fi ial instr inued

Financfal Liabilities

(a) Payables

(i) Trade Payables
(I) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - B B
(II) Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other 49,174 - 49,174
than micro and small enterprises
(i) Other Payables - h .
(D) Totzl outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - - .

(c} Debt Secwrities . . 2
(d) Bosrowings (otker than Debt Securities) = = =

() Deposits - - -
(f) Lease Liabilities - - -

(g) other Financial liabilities a5 - 35

49,209 - 49,208

Non-financial Liabilities

(a) Carrent tax liabilifies (nef) B - -

{b) Provisions 39 38 77
{c) Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) N = -
{b) Other Non-financial liabilities 165 - 165

26

27

28

9

204 33 242
Total liahilities 49,413 38 49,450

iv) Commadity Risk
The Company’s exposure to commodity risk arises primarily on account of margin positions of its clients in exchange traded commodity derivatives. Hence the Company has no
direct commodity risk.

The Company’s commedity risk is managed in accordance with its CRIP, approved by its Risk Management Committee. The CRIP stipulates risk-based margin requirements for
margin based trading in commodity derivatives by its clients.

Utilivation of funds
(a} The Group has not advanced or lvaned or invested funds 1o any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

(1i) provide any guarantee, security or the li%e to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(b) The Group has not received any fund from any persen(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the undersianding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Group shail:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in ether persons or entitfes identified in aty manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (timate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantce, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Financial Ratios

Particulars Numerater Denominator 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
1) Debt-Equity Ratio Debt consists borrowings Total equity NA NA

b) Return on Net worth Ratio Profit for the year Average total net worth NA NA

¢} Debtors turnover ratio, Sales / Income Average debtors NA NA

) Interest coverage ratio (times) EBITDA Interest expense NA NA

£} Net profit ratio Profit for the year Revenue from opetations NA NA

These tatios are not applicable as the same does not apply to a broking company.

Segment information
The holding Company i¢ Titan Company Limited prepares the consolidated financial n d with Ind AS 10% on Operating Segments, the holding Company has
disclosed the segment information in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue from contracts with castomers
The Compaty is ¢ngaged in the business of retail and institutional broking. In accordance with Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with ¢ the is d in the
following manner for each head; -

a) Broking Income:

The company is providing trade execution and setflement services to the customers in refail and institutional segment. There is only one performance obligation of execution of the
trade and settlement of the transaction which i3 satisfied at a point in time. The brokerage charged is the transaction price and is recopnised as revenue on trade date basis. Related
receivables are generally recovered in a period of 2 days as per the settlement cycle. Amount not recovered and which remain overdune for a period exceeding 90 days, are provided
for.

W
\ i
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29 Revenue from canfracts with eustomers (continued)
(#) Revenue is disageregated by major ssrvice lines and timing of revenue recognition as follows:
Particulars Fur the year ended For the year ended|
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Timing of Revenue Recognition
Services fransfersed at a point in time - income from broking 758 561
Services transferred over time - income from bank gnarantee commission 59 162
Interest Income 34 2
(b} Contract balances
The following tabfe provides information about Contract agsets and Liabiities from contract with customers
Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Trade receivables R -]

The customer Titan Company Limited primarity acconnt for mote than [0% of revenue as or 31 March 2024,

The financial staternents are presented in * lakhs {rounded off). Those items which are required to be disclosed and which were not presented in the financial statements due to
rounding off to the neasest ~ lakhs are given below in rupees:

Particnfars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Property, plant ard equipment 5 28,453 28,454
Deferred tax liability [ - 18,000
Employee pension fund 22 60,000 59,063
Bandwidth/ networking charges (in Relzied party notes) 24 NA NA
Trade Payable to Tata Commanications Lid 24 65,250 21,750

* The value in the current year is in lakhs which is disclosed in the respective note

Tke Company is opefating under operational leases for its office premises. Total rental expenses under the lease amounted to Rs.3 lakhs (Previous year : Rs. 3 lakh). This
arrangement o not qualify as a lease as per the requirements of IND AS 116.

(@) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(ii} The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-ofeuse assets) or intangible assets or hoth during the current or previous year,

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency duting the financial year.

(v} The Company has not amy such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that hes been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey of any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

{vi) The Company does not have any borrowings sanctioned from banks and financial instituations.

(vil) None of the entities in the Company have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial instifution or government or any government authority.

(viii) The Company has complicd with the number of Tayers preseribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

(bx) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current ot previous Hnancial year.

(%) The analytical ratios have not been disclosed in the financial statements as per Division [1I - IND A8 Schedule T to the Companies Act, 2013, since the Company is inte
broking services, the same is not applicable.

Subsequent events
Thers are no significant subsequent events that occurred after the reporting period till the date of signing these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Titan Commodity Trading Limited
C] o- UG7190KA2020PLCL37042

;mﬁé

hok Sonthalia Keerthivasan S Madh Jagannathan RhonacK S
irector Managing Director Chief Financial Qfficer Company Secrefary
Membership Number : 222515 DIN - 03259583 Membership No - A34050
Place: Bengalum Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengalura Place: Bengaluru
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